Indiana Department of Labor
Indiana Occupational Safety and Health Administration
402 West Washington Street, Room W195
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

Phone: (317) 232-1979 FAX: (317) 233-3790

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

To: Inspection Number: 1669457

Azteca Milling LP CSHO ID: R6100

and its successors Optional Report No.: UNKNOWN

15700 Highway 41 North Inspection Date(s): 05/11/2023 - 06/12/2023
Evansville, IN 47725 Issuance Date: 06/22/2023

Inspection Site: The violation(s) described in this Safety Order and
15700 Highway 41 North Notification of Penalty is (are) alleged to have
Evansville, IN 47725 occurred on or about the day(s) the inspection was

made unless otherwise indicated within the description
given below.

An inspection of your workplace of employment has revealed conditions which we believe do not comply
with the provisions of the Indiana Occupational Safety and Health Act (Indiana Code Chapter 22-8-1.1) or
the standards or rules adopted thereunder. Accordingly, enclosed please find safety order(s) and
notification(s) of penalty describing such violation(s) with references to applicable standards, rules or
provisions of the statute and stating the amount of any penalty(ies).

Informal Conference — Please be advised that it may be possible to informally settle any
potential dispute without initiating the more elaborate proceedings brought on by a petition for
review. Prior to filing a petition for review, you may request an informal conference concerning
any results of the inspection (safety orders, penalties, abatement dates, etc.) by contacting the
Indiana Department of Labor/IOSHA, preferably by telephone, in a prompt manner. Please be
advised that a request for an informal conference cannot extend the fifteen working day period
for filing a petition for review. Informal conferences frequently resolve any possible disputes,
and therefore you are urged to take advantage of this opportunity. Because of the limited time
period and in order to facilitate scheduling, any requests for an informal conference should be
made promptly upon your receipt of the safety order(s) and notification(s) of penalty.

Right to Contest — You are hereby also notified that you are entitled to seek administrative review of
the safety order(s), penalty(ies), or both by filing a written petition for review at the above address
postmarked within fifteen working days of your receipt of the safety order(s) and notification(s) of
penalty. (“Working days” means Mondays through Fridays, but does not include Saturdays, Sundays,
legal holidays under a state statute or days on which the Indiana Department of Labor’s offices are
closed during regular business hours). If you do not file such a petition for review (contest), the safety



order(s) and penalty(ies) shall be deemed final orders of the Board of Safety Review and not subject to
review by any court or agency. The issuance of a safety order does not constitute a finding that a
violation has occurred unless no petition for review is filed, or if a petition for review (contest) is filed,
it must contain a statement of its basis and should reference the above inspection number. Upon receipt
of your petition for review, we will affirm, amend or dismiss the safety order(s) and notification(s) of
penalty. If we affirm, your petition for review will be granted (unless it was not timely) and the dispute
will be certified by the Board of Safety Review for further proceedings. The Board of Safety Review is
an independent board appointed by the governor with authority to conduct legal proceedings leading up
to and including administrative hearings or assign an Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) to conduct the
same, and to issue decisions concerning disputed safety orders and notifications of penalties. If we
amend the safety order(s) or notification(s) of penalty, your petition for review shall be deemed moot.
However, you will then be given an opportunity to file a petition for review concerning the amended
safety order(s) and notification(s) of penalty.

Please be advised that an employee or representative of employees may file a petition for review to
contest the reasonableness of the time stated in the safety order(s) for the abatement of any violation.

Posting - Upon receipt of any safety order(s) you are required to post such safety order(s), or a copy
thereof, unedited, at or near each place an alleged violation referred to in the safety order(s) occurred.
However, if your operations are such that it is not practicable to post the safety order(s) at or near each
place of alleged violation, such safety order(s) shall be posted, unedited, in a prominent place where it
will be readily observable by all affected employees. For example, if you are engaged in activities
which are physically dispersed, the safety order(s) may be posted at the location from which the
employees operate to carry out their activities. You must take steps to ensure that the safety order is not
altered, defaced, or covered by other material. Posting shall be until the violation is abated, or for three
working days, whichever is longer.

Penalties - Penalties are due within fifteen (15) working days of receipt of this notification unless
contested. Abatement does not constitute payment of penalties.

Abatement - The conditions cited in the safety order(s) must be corrected (abated) on or before the
date shown for each item on the safety order(s) and notification(s) of penalty unless:

(1) You file a petition for review concerning the violation, in which case the full abatement
period shall commence from the issuance of a final decision by the Board of Safety Review or the
courts which requires compliance with the safety order; or

(2) The abatement period is extended by the granting of a petition for modification of abatement
date.

PMAs - The petition for modification of abatement date is a manner in which you may seek additional
time to correct (abate) a violation without having to file a petition for review concerning the safety
order, or after the expiration of the time period to file such a petition for review when it becomes
apparent that you need extra time to abate the violation. A petition for modification of abatement date
shall be in writing and shall include the following information:
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(1) All steps you have taken, and the dates of such actions, in an effort to achieve compliance
during the prescribed abatement period.

(2) The specific additional abatement time necessary in order to achieve compliance.

(3) The reasons such additional time is necessary, including the unavailability of professional or
technical personnel or of materials and equipment, or because necessary construction or alteration of
facilities cannot be completed by the original abatement date.

(4) All available interim steps being taken to safeguard employees against the cited hazard
during the abatement period.

(5) A certification that a copy of the petition has been posted, and if appropriate, served on the
authorized representative of affected employees, and a certification of the date upon which such posting
and service was made.

A petition for modification of abatement date shall be filed with the Indiana Department of
Labor/IOSHA no later than the close of the next working day following the date on which abatement
was originally required. A later-filed petition shall be accompanied by the employer's statement of
exceptional circumstances explaining the delay. A copy of such petition shall be posted in a
conspicuous place where all affected employees will have notice thereof or near such location where
the violation occurred. The petition shall remain posted until the time period for the filing of a petition
for review of the Commissioner's granting or denying the petition expires. Where affected employees
are represented by an authorized representative, said representative shall be served a copy of such
petition.

Notification of Corrective Action - Correction of the alleged violations which have an abatement
period of thirty (30) days or less should be reported in writing to us promptly upon correction. A "Letter
of Abatement" form and an "Abatement Photographs" worksheet are enclosed for your assistance in
providing adequate documentation of abatement. Reports of corrections should show specific
corrective action on each alleged violation and the date of such action. On alleged violations with
abatement periods of more than thirty (30) days, a written progress report should be submitted,
detailing what has been done, what remains to be done, and the time needed to fully abate each such
violation. When the alleged violation is fully abated, we should be so advised. Timely correction of an
alleged violation does not affect the initial proposed penalty.

Followup Inspections - Please be advised that a followup inspection may be made for the purpose of
ascertaining that you have posted the safety order(s) and corrected the alleged violations. Failure to
correct an alleged violation may result in additional penalties for each day that the violation has not
been corrected.

Employer Discrimination Unlawful - The law prohibits discrimination by an employer against an
employee for filing a complaint or for exercising any rights under this Act. An employee who believes
that he/she has been discriminated against may file a complaint no later than 30 days after the
discrimination occurred with the Indiana Department of Labor/IOSHA at the address shown above.

Notice to Employees - The law gives an employee or his/her representative the opportunity to object
to any abatement date set for a violation if he/she believes the date to be unreasonable. The contest
must be mailed to the Indiana Department of Labor/IOSHA at the address shown above within fifteen
(15) working days (excluding weekends and State holidays) or receipt by the employer of this safety
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order and penalty.

If you wish additional information, you may direct such requests to us at the address or telephone
number stated above.
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Indiana Department of Labor

Indiana Occupational Safety and Health Administration
402 West Washington Street, Room W195
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

Phone: (317) 232-1979 FAX: (317) 233-3790

NOTICE TO EMPLOYEES OF INFORMAL CONFERENCE

An informal conference has been scheduled with IOSHA to discuss the Safety Order(s) issued on
06/22/2023.

The Informal Conference will be held:

Date:

Time:

Virtually/Telephonically via Microsoft Teams

Call-in Number:

Conference ID:

In-person at the Indiana Department of Labor, located at the following address:

402 West Washington Street, Room W195
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

Meeting/Conference Room:

Employees and/or representatives of employees have a right to attend an informal conference.
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Indiana Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1669457

Occupational Safety and Health Administration CSHO ID: R6100
Optional Report No.: UNKNOWN

Inspection Date(s): 05/11/2023 - 06/12/2023
Issuance Date: 06/22/2023

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Azteca Milling LP
Inspection Site: 15700 Highway 41 North, Evansville, IN 47725

The alleged violations below have been grouped because they involve similar or related hazards that may increase
the potential for injury or illness.

Safety Order 1 Item 1 a  Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.23(c)(8): The top step of a stepladder was used as a step or a seat:
Azteca Milling LP, 15700 HWY 41 N, Evansville, Indiana, Packing Department Line No. 5 Filler No. 4, On or

about May 10, 2023, an employee(s) using a 6 foot step ladder utilized the top cap as a step to access the top of a
machine.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: August 08, 2023
Proposed Penalty: $4,000.00
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Indiana Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1669457

Occupational Safety and Health Administration CSHO ID: R6100
Optional Report No.: UNKNOWN

Inspection Date(s): 05/11/2023 - 06/12/2023
Issuance Date: 06/22/2023

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Azteca Milling LP
Inspection Site: 15700 Highway 41 North, Evansville, IN 47725

Safety Order 1 Item 1 b Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.23(c)(11):(11) Where portable ladders were used to gain access to an upper landing surface the ladder
side rails did not extend at least 3 feet (0.9 m) above the upper landing surface:

Azteca Milling LP, 15700 HWY 41 N, Evansville, Indiana, Packing Department Line No. 5 Filler No. 4, On or

about May 10, 2023, the employer did not assure the ladder used to access the machine was placed at least 3 foot
above the top landing surface, nor was a grab rail provided.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: August 08, 2023
Proposed Penalty: $0.00
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Indiana Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1669457

Occupational Safety and Health Administration CSHO ID: R6100
Optional Report No.: UNKNOWN

Inspection Date(s): 05/11/2023 - 06/12/2023
Issuance Date: 06/22/2023

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Azteca Milling LP
Inspection Site: 15700 Highway 41 North, Evansville, IN 47725

Safety Order 1 Item 2 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.28(b)(1)(1): (1) Each employee on a walking/working surface with an unprotected side or edge which
was 4 feet or more above a lower level was not protected from falling by the use of guardrail systems, safety net
systems, or a personal fall arrest system:

Azteca Milling LP, 15700 HWY 41 N, Evansville, Indiana, Packing Department Line No. 5 Filler No. 4, On or
about May 10, 2023, an employee(s) engaged in maintenance activities at a height of approximately 7 feet
(was/were) not protected from falls by any means.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: August 08, 2023
Proposed Penalty: $4,000.00
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Indiana Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1669457

Occupational Safety and Health Administration CSHO ID: R6100
Optional Report No.: UNKNOWN

Inspection Date(s): 05/11/2023 - 06/12/2023
Issuance Date: 06/22/2023

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Azteca Milling LP
Inspection Site: 15700 Highway 41 North, Evansville, IN 47725

Safety Order 1 Item 3 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.147(c)(6)(1)(C): Where lockout is used for energy control, the periodic inspection shall include a
review, between the inspector and each authorized employee, of that employee's responsibilities under the energy
control procedure being inspected:

Azteca Milling LP, 15700 HWY 41 N, Evansville, Indiana, Packing Department Line No. 5 Filler No. 4, On or
about May 10, 2023, the employer did not perform periodic audits with authorized personnel.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: August 08, 2023
Proposed Penalty: $2,000.00
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Indiana Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1669457

Occupational Safety and Health Administration CSHO ID: R6100
Optional Report No.: UNKNOWN

Inspection Date(s): 05/11/2023 - 06/12/2023
Issuance Date: 06/22/2023

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Azteca Milling LP
Inspection Site: 15700 Highway 41 North, Evansville, IN 47725

Safety Order 1 Item 4 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.147(d): The established procedure for the application of energy control (the lockout or tagout
procedures) did not cover the actions listed in and was not done in sequence as required by 29 CFR 1910.147

(d)(1)-(6):

Jobsite - 15700 US HWY 41 N, Evansville, Indiana 47725 - On or about May 10, 2023, Packaging Department - An
employee was exposed to a caught by hazard when make repairs to an auger on line #5 Filler #4 in the Packing
Department. The energy control application steps to perform the repair were not implemented per 1910.147(d)
requirements. As a result, the following applicable energy control elements were not followed to include:

Prepare for shutdown [(d)(1)] - ensure authorized employee has knowledge of the type and magnitude of the
energy, the hazards of the energy to be controlled, and the method or means to control the energy:

Shutdown the machine or equipment [(d)(2)] - the machine or equipment shall be turned off or shut down using the
procedures established for the machine or equipment:

Machine isolation [(d)(3)] - physically locate and operate all energy isolating devices that are needed to control the
energy to the machine or equipment in such a manner as to isolate the machine or equipment from the energy
sources(s):

LOTO device application [(d)(4)(i)] - affix a lockout or tagout device to each energy isolating device:

Stored energy [(d)(5)(1)] - all potentially hazardous or stored residual energy shall be relieved, disconnected,
restrained, or otherwise rendered safe:

Verification of isolation [(d)(6)] - Prior to starting work on machines or equipment that have been locked out or
tagged out, the authorized employee shall verify that isolation and deenergization of the machine or equipment have
been accomplished:

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: August 08, 2023
Proposed Penalty: $7,000.00
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Indiana Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1669457

Occupational Safety and Health Administration CSHO ID: R6100
Optional Report No.: UNKNOWN

Inspection Date(s): 05/11/2023 - 06/12/2023
Issuance Date: 06/22/2023

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Azteca Milling LP
Inspection Site: 15700 Highway 41 North, Evansville, IN 47725

Safety Order 1 Item 5 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.303(f)(4):Disconnect was not capable of accepting a lock. Disconnecting means required by this
subpart shall be capable of being locked in the open position:

Azteca Milling LP, 15700 HWY 41 N, Evansville, Indiana, Packing Department Line No. 5 Filler No. 4, On or
about May 10, 2023, the employer allowed for the use of a disconnect unable to accept a lock in the open position.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: August 08, 2023
Proposed Penalty: $2,000.00
Eremy Galloway %
IOSHA Director
JG:tj
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Indiana Department of Labor
Occupational Safety and Health Administration

INVOICE/DEBT COLLECTION NOTICE

Company Name: Azteca Milling LP
Inspection Site: 15700 Highway 41 North, Evansville, IN 47725
Issuance Date: 06/22/2023

Summary of Penalties for Inspection Number: 1669457

Safety Order 1 Item 1a, Serious $4,000.00
Safety Order 1 Item 1b, Serious $0.00
Safety Order 1 Item 2, Serious $4,000.00
Safety Order 1 Item 3, Serious $2,000.00
Safety Order 1 Item 4, Serious $7,000.00
Safety Order 1 Item 5, Serious $2,000.00
TOTAL PROPOSED PENALTIES: $19,000.00

Penalties are due within fifteen (15) working days of receipt of this notification unless requested.
Make your check or money order payable to: “Indiana DOL/IOSHA.” Please indicate IOSHA’s
Inspection Number (indicated above) on the remittance. You may also make a payment online at
https://payingov.com/dol/. Your account number is your inspection number.

IOSHA does not agree to any restrictions or conditions or endorsements put on any check or money
order for less than full amount due, and will cash the check or money order as if these restrictions,
conditions, or endorsements do not exist.

Corrective action taken by you for each alleged violation should be submitted to this office on or about
the abatement dates indicated on the Safety Order and Notification of Penalty.

A worksheet has been provided to assist in providing the required abatement information. A completed
copy of this worksheet should be posted at the worksite with safety orders.

6/22/2023
Jeremy Galloway /— Date
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IOSHA Director
JG:tj
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STATE OF INDIANA ) BEFORE THE IOSHA BOARD OF

) SS: SAFETY REVIEW
COUNTY OF MARION ) FILED
IN THE MATTER OF THE ) JUN 18 2024
COMMISSIONER OF LABOR, ) R
) Safety Review
Complainant, ) CASE DOCKET NO. 23-052
)
" )  ADMINISTRATIVE CAUSE NO.
) DOL-2312-003114
AZTECA MILLING LP, )
AND ITS SUCCESSORS, )
)
Respondent. )

FINAL ORDER

The parties to the above-referenced proceeding, through their duly authorized
representatives, have filed with the Board their Agreed Entry. The Board, being duly advised,
now accepts the Respondent’s withdrawal of its Notice of Contest, and adopts the Safety Orders
and penalty issued by the Commissioner of Labor, as modified by the Agreed Entry, as its final
order in this matter.

IT IS ORDERED that the Respondent’s withdrawal of its Notice of Contest is accepted
and the Safety Orders and penalty issued by the Commissioner of Labor, as modified by the

Agreed Entry, is adopted as a final order.

Dated: O(_é, /19 /929:2(‘{

(@MZ /L)&aé/ Lo

Danny Deighton, Chairman




Copies to:

J. Anthony Hardman

General Counsel

Department of Labor

402 W. Washington St., Rm. W195
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Kenneth B. Siepman

Ogletree Deakins Nash Smoak & Stewart PC
300 N. Meridian St., Suite 2700
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Indiana Office of Administrative Law Proceedings
100 N. Senate Avenue, Rm. N802
Indianapolis, IN 46204
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STATE OF INDIANA ) BEFORE THE INDIANA OFFICE OF
) SS: ADMINISTRATIVE LAW PROCEEDINGS,
COUNTY OF MARION ) SUBJECT TO THE ULTIMATE
AUTHORITY OF THE IOSHA BOARD OF
SAFETY REVIEW
IN THE MATTER OF: ) OALP CASE NO. DOL-2312-003114
e ) BSR DOCKET NO. 23-052
COMMISSIONER OF LABOR, )
)
Complainant, )
)
Y. )
)
AZTECA MILLING LP )
AND ITS SUCCESSORS, )
)
Respondent. )

AGREED ENTRY

The parties to the above-captioned proceeding, the Commissioner of the Indiana
Department of Labor (hereinafter “Complainant”) and Azteca Milling LP (hereinafter
“Respondent”), through their duly authorized representatives, desiring to enter into this Agreed
Entry as final settlement of this matter, do hereby stipulate and agree as follows:

PART L

1. From May 11, 2023, through June 12, 2023, authorized employees of the Indiana
Department of Labor conducted an inspection at the Respondent’s worksite located at 15700
Highway 41 North, Evansville, IN 47725.

2. On June 22, 2023, Complainant issued a Safety Order and Notification of Penalty
(hereinafter “Safety Order”) resulting from Indiana Department of Labor Inspection No.
1669457 and alleging that Respondent had violated the Indiana Occupational Safety and Health‘
Act (IC 22-8-1.1 et seq.) or the standards or rules thereunder. The Safety Order is attached hereto

as Exhibit A and is incorporated herein.
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3. On or about December 8, 2023, Respondent duly and timely petitioned for review of
the Safety Order.

PART L

4. The Safety Order consists of Safety Order 1, Item Nos. 1a, 1b, 2,3, 4, and 5.

5. Safety Order 1, Item la alleges a “Gerjous” violation of 29 CFR 1910.23(c)(8) and
assesses a penalty of Four Thousand Doliars ($4,000).

6. Safety Order 1, Item 1b alleges a “Serious” violation of 29 CFR 1910.23(c)(11) and

assesses no additional penalty above what is assessed in [tem la.

7. Safety Order 1, Item 2 alleges a “Serious” violation of 29 CFR 1910.28(b)(1)(i) and
assesses a penalty of Four Thousand Dollars ($4,000).

8. Safety Order 1, Item 3 alleges a “Serious” violation of 29 CFR 1910.147(c)(6)INC)
and assesses a penalty of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000).

9. Safety Order 1, Item 4 alleges a “Serious” violation of 29 CFR 1910.147(d) and
assesses a penalty of Seven Thousand Dollars ($7,000).

10. Safety Order 1, Item 5 alleges a “Serious” violation of 29 CFR 1910.303(£)(4) and
assesses penalty of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000).

11. The total assessed penalty for Safety Order 1 is Nineteen Thousand Dollars
($19,000).

PART M.

12. The Safety Order is hereby amended as follows.

13. Safety Order 1, Item lais upheld, but re-classified to “NonSerious” and retains the
penalty originally cited.

14. Safety Order 1, Item 1b is upheld, but re-classified to “NonSerious”™ and retains the

Agreed Entry
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penalty originaily cited.
15. Safety Order 1, Item 2 is upheld, but re-classified to “NonSerious” and retains the
penalty originally cited.
16. Safety Order 1, Item 3 is upheld, but re-classified to “NonSerious” and retains the
penalty originally cited.
17. Safety Order 1, Item 4 is deleted in its entirety, due to lack of evidence to support.
18. Safety Order 1, Item 5 is upheld, but re-classified to “NonSerious” and retains the
penalty originally cited.
19. The AGREED total penalty for all violations and all subparts thereunder, subject to
this Agreed Entry, is Twelve Thousand Dollars ($12,000).
20. In consideration for reclassification of the citations, Respondent has completed the
following enhanced abatement and provide Complainant with proof of each:
a. Updated its safety compliance observations.
b. Implemented new machine specific LOTO procedures throughout the facility.
¢. Trained employees on new procedures.
21. It is understood and agreed by the Respondent and Complainant that this Agreed
Entry and attachments will constitute a final, enforceable OSHA Safety Order(s) and penalties
for the purposes of the Indiana Occupational Safety and Health Act (“Act”).
22. Respondent confirms Complainant’s right to re-inspect its workplaces, in accordance
with the Act, and to verify abatermnent of the alleged violations.
3. 1f not already identified in the Safety Order and Notification of Penalty as completed
during the inspection, all abatement, including any enhanced abatement identified and agreed

upon herein, must still be completed in a timely manner and certified to IOSHA by sending
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confirmation of abatement, including a detailed description of what was done along with any
supporting documentation and photographs, to IOSHA by email to abatement(@dol.in.gov.

24, Respondent hereby withdraws its petition for review previously filed in this matter,
subject to the terms of this agreed entry.

PARTIV.

25. Nothing contained in this Agreed Entry shall be construed to affect Complainant’s
interpretation of the Act or any standard or regulation enforced pursuant thereto or the applicable
classification thereof.

26. Except for this agreement, and matters arising out of this agreement and any other
subsequent IOSHA proceedings between the parties, none of the foregoing agreements,
statements, findings, and actions taken by the Respondent shall be deemed an admission by
Respondent of the allegations contained within the Safety Order(s) and Notification(s) of
Penalty. The agreements, statements, findings, and actions taken herein are made in order to
compromise and seftle this matter economically and amicably, and they shall not be used for any
other purpose, except as herein stated.

7. The invalidity or unenforceability of any section, subsection, clause or provision of
this Agreed Entry does not affect the remaining sections, subsections, clauses, o provisions of
this Agreed Entry.

28. Respondent, upon full execution of this Agreed Entry, will post this Agreed Entry for
three (3) working days or until abatement is completed, whichever period is longer, pursuant to

Board of Safety Review Rules of Procedure, 615 IAC 1-2-18(b)(3)(C).
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AGREED this 20th day of May 2024,

AZTECA MILLING LP

By: (ALDLLL sl

i

Printed: Alberto Jacques
Title: VP Manufacturing

By:- fm@mmw

Printed: Francisco Martmez

Title: VP of Operat;ons

Appl oved as to Form:
By: A_/'

Kenneth B. Slepman,
Counsel for Respondent

COMMISSIONER OF LABOR

Director of Safety Compliance,
TOSHA

9%

J. Anthony Hardman,
Counse! for Complainant

Agreed Entry
Page 5 aof §

i wans e

e AR

oA PR T e




Tudiana Departm ¢ntof Lahor
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for ﬁling a p ‘ﬁon for view,. {informal conferences fr . : .
i oil are irged to take advantige o of thiis o '“omm' v, Beciise of th

nght‘fn Contest:~ You are hereby also notified ﬂnat“yau

ther safety order(s), penahygies), ot both by filing & Wit
postimarked within fifieen, working days -of yout, receipt

Eenaity (“Working days™ ' thesns Manidays thicugh Brid 4§, but.

legal Frolidays under a state status ot days on which, the Indizna Depa et of :

closed:during tegular- business hours), I:you do not file: guch a: petrtmn for review (contest), fhe:




otderls) and pengliylies) shall be deemed final: orders-of the Board.of Safety Review and not:subject to
seview by any &ourt Or Agency. The Igsuatice.of 4 safety’ order does ot tonstifuse 4 finding fhata
vichition has oecuiied uniess no-petition for.review % fifed, or if'a petitionfor review (contest) is filed;
it must-contain a statement ofits basis.and should feférence the.above inspéction. noraber; Upon receipt
of your perition for rexiew; e will affizm, amend ot dismiss the safety. order(s) and notification of
penalty, If we-affitm, your petition ¢ review will'be granted (unless.it was HOL el
will e cerfified by the Board of Safety Review for:furt e proeedings. "The Bodrd:of Safety Rey
andependent board appoiinted by the-goverior Wi avthority te conductJegal proceedings leading up
o and including administrativé heerings: or assin an Adininistrative Taw Judge (ALJ) '

_ (ALY to conduef the
sanhe, and to, fssug decisons: concertilng disputed safefy ¢ of ‘penalties; 1f we
amend. the-safety order(s); or notification(s) of penalty, yoiif peition o shall be degmed mott.
Howeier you will then be given dn opportinity to-fdle 4 pefition:for teyiew concerning the amended
safely order(s) and notification(sy of penalty, ' |

Please be advised that anemployes of fepresentative of employecs: may. file. & petition for: review o
contestthe: reasonablenessiof the time:stited i thie-safety drder(s) fof the abatemient of any viglation..

Posting - Upon teceipt of any safety order(s) Yoo are sequired to post suchisafety oider(s), oraCapY,
thereot. unedited, at vE:near each place an:e ged viclation referred toin. th - 1
However, i yc;u;%gcraﬁmas:-am:such%hat’it.“_ pr 1e;t post thie safety ofdex(s) at.or 1

place 6f alfeped violatidr, such safety-order(s) shall be posted, wnedited; Ta prominent place whers i
will ‘be readily -Gbgervable by all affected employees. For example; if you. are engaged in: activities

employees pperate t0 carry ot their activities %

1y ordei(s); may b posted et the loation fromm sehich the

‘ itist fake steps forensure that the safety order-ismmiot
alfered, -defaced;.or-covered by other-material. Posting, shall be vintd the Viclation §8 dbated, ot for thiee
soiking days, whichever is longer.

Penzities ~ Penities are die withifl Fiffeen (15) working days ‘of receipt-of his notification nless
contested: Ab atement does-net constitute paymentof penalties: '

Abatement = The conditions sited in the safety orderg) ifust be coietted (abted) on or before the:
date shiown for each itefi on thesafety Jﬁréie‘.t(}%)’éaﬁdﬁcﬁiﬁﬁ@%ﬁ@iﬁﬁs}oif’;icna"lﬁyr%mifqm,

(1 You file: a petition for review concermning the violation, e which case-the. full abatement

peiod shal, gorimietics ffomi tlie’ issuance of a fiial. decision by e Boiitd of Safety Review ot the
S oty which eequites complisrioe withthe safety orders or |

 {2) The abatement périod is extended by the graninig of 4 petition foe snadifioation of abdterent

‘PMASs - The:petition for modificdtion of sbatement date is a manner in which you mdy geek additionial
S to Sorrect (abate) 8. violation without haying to-file & petifion for eview concemilng the safety
order, o, after. the ‘expiration of the fime period fo file such :petition for review when it becomes
apparent that you.héed X tiiite to abate the Violation, A petition for iodification ‘of dbterfient date
shall bein weiting-and shall.include the following infortnation:
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(1 A1 steps you ave taker, sad the dates of ‘such actiohs, fivan effGrE to achieve eomiplianice
during the prescribed sbatement period.

(3) Thie specific additional abatément ditie neessaty i oxder to adhieve coimpliatice

sessary, including tie unavailability-of professional ot
fiatatials and equiprietit; o¢ becaiiss: iccéssary Constmctionof Alteration of
orginal abatément date:

7 The reasons such additiopal Himie is Heces:

(@) All available inferim steps. being taken o safeguard employees against the: cited hazard
dufing the abuterhgny period: |

{5) Accertification hat & copy of thezpetition-bas been posted,-and if appropriate; served: on fhe
gess, dnd §certification: of the datetpon which Suth posting

authtirzéd tépresentative: 5T affested einploys
and service wasmade:

A pefition for fodification of sbatemert date shall be filed viith ‘flie: Tndiana Department of
b/ IOSHA 1o Tater than thie close-of the next wotking day following the date o whichzabatetnet

‘was’ angmgliy required., A Tater-filed petition shall be accompanied by the: employers stafernent of
exceptional elfpams

. *

s explaliing the dolay. A-sapy of such petitio shall b posted i &
place where all affected employess will have notice thereof-or ear such lpgation where
qrréd, ‘The petition shall nema?npﬂsted smits, fhe tine period for the fil g-of d petition.
for-review af the Commissioner's granting ot denying the petition expires: Where affected employees
-are: represenited by an: authorized Tepresentative, said pepresentative ‘ghall ‘be: served a copy of such.
‘petition.

‘Notification of Corrective Action - Catrection of the alleged yiolations which have an:abatefnent
period:of thirty-(30) days-.or lessshould be reported in yeriting:fo-us promyitly upon correction. A "Letter

of Aliatement form and. an wibaterment Photographs" woiksheet dre enclosed foi yoti assistanee in.
providing adequate dosumentation of sbatement. Reports of corrections should. show specific
corective: astion on each, alleged Jidlation and the date; of suck. Aetiod. On -alleged. violatioms: with
batement periods of morg than thirty (30) days, 4 writicn PEOgTess repoik should be submitted,
isiation. Whien thealleged vioJation fs fully sbated, we should be 50 adviged. ‘Tirefy portection of ad
-dlleged xﬁisaf_laﬁggzslmﬁ-nét&jﬁ?@tfh@hﬁﬁ&lzpz,oms@ enalty. '

detailing what has been done, what remains to be done, and the time needed 1o, ful

Followup Inspections - Pleasebe advised that 2
scertatirig that you have posted ' the wafety ordér(s)
correct an alleged viclation may result in additions] penalties for-gech day that

followup .:?i'ns_p'ec;ﬁ{cmfmay_ ‘bermade for-the purpose of

§) dnd corredted the alleged yiclatiosis. Faiire to
fhat the violation has not

Einployet Diserimination Unlawﬁﬂ - The, faiw profibits dist:nmmafmn by an employét againstan
graployes far Filing 2 complaint o for exercising any tights wider fhis Act. Ani employee who.beligvés
that he/she has been discriminated. against: may file: a complaint no later than 30 days. after the

inent bf Lab r/rosHAattheaddressshamabove

dlsctimination ocensted with the Tadfana Depar

Notice to Employees - The liw gives an employee or hils/hér representative the Sppiortinity 1o biect
e date to be yreasonable, The ¢

1o any ebatement date set for violation if he/she beligve the date. s gomntest
st bé nailed to the Indiana Departrhent of Labor/IOSHA at the addfess showri abave within fiften
(15) working day$ (excluding weekends and Stite holidays) or regaipt by the employer of this safety
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T

wirdet ind peénalty.

T yon wish additional informations; yeu may direct:
Fiurber: stated abiove:

such Tequests: to us. at the: afldress or telephone

Sufity- Order.and Noification of Pendlty ' pigedof 13 kA ey 13



Indiana Department of Laboxr:

Tndiana Occupational Safety and Health Administeation:
A0% West Washisigton Street, Rootn W19
Indianapolis, Indiana:46204

Phane: (317)232-1679 FAX: (317)233:3790:

Ani informal conference has'been scheduled with [OSELA to disouss the Safity Order(s) issued-on
06/22/2023:

The: Informal, Conference - will beheld:

Date:

“Time:

“Virtnally/Telephonically +ia Microsoft Teams

‘Gaﬂﬁinﬁu_x‘_n%erz- L

Gonference ID:

seiit. of Tabor, located atthe foilowing addiess:

_Ph-peion at the Tidiana Departt

402 West Washingtan Street, Room W193
indianapolis, indiata 46204

Mesting/Conferefice Ropm:

Empleyeesandforrepresentaﬁvesof einployees havea fight to:attend an fufbertial conference..
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Todiana Departinent of Labor Inspection Number: 1669457
Qggnpfgﬁgnﬂ%a'fety~'aniﬁﬂbdiﬁieA&mihis&dﬁ'en; CSHOIDy  'R6100

T Opfional Report No.: Ul N
Tispeétion Date(s): 05/11
Issuance Date:

3

Saety Order aid Notifieation of Penalty

. .Inggggﬁ@n-"sﬁe‘."-IS*?BD'—HighWay- 41 Noxth; Bvansville, INAT725

1

‘The sillegediviolations below Have b peouped icause thiey dnvolve slinilarpt refared hzards that ey incrase

{hie patential for injury or illmess:.

59 CFR 191043(6)() Thehop sisp ofa stepladies wasiused as astep or seat

Asteo Milling LB; 15700 EEWY 41 "
aboutMay, 10,2023, an employee(s) using a6 T e ap s o s
Tngchinie. . ‘

‘No: 5 Filler Mo, 4,00 or.
} top-ofa

ABATEMENTDOCUMENTATIONREQUIREDFORTHIS YIEM

Date: By Which Vislatior Kt be Abated: Axigust 08, 2023

Proposed Penalty: - $4,000.00
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‘Tndiana Departutent of Labor Thspection Numiber: 1559457

Occupational Safety and Health-Administration CSHO D R6100.
Optionil Repoit No.: UNKNQWN
Tispection Date(s): 057112023~ 06/12/2023
Jssuance Dater 06/2272023

Safety Order snd Notificition.of Penalty.

Comjpany Niitnes Azteea Milling LP
InspecnnnSite« 15700 I’ﬁghway 41 North; Evanmﬁe; IN4TR25

Bafety Order Them b  Typeof Violatom: Seriois.

oA TR Whete. portable ladders wers ) e fo5 gmnﬁccessto ani upper fanding surface/itic ladder |
tnovextend u east3 foet (0,971 above the upper andie

_ ng LP; 15700 HWY 41 N, ‘Evansville; Indiana, Packing De;:aﬂmuni Line No, 5:Eiller Na. 4, On ot
#houtVay 10,2023, the emplﬁyeﬂild riof assuce the fadder useditoaccessthe machinewas placed: atfeast 3 foot:
abeve thetop landing suitace; HOT Was's: prab sl provided: .

' Date By Which Violafion Must beAbated : August 0%, 2023
Proposed Penalty: $0:00:

Safety Order and Notifieation:of: Fendty Page 701 13 OSHAS (Rev 13 .



fLabor Tuspection Number: 168045 T
Adignisteafion, CSHOTDE R6100:
Optional ReportNo.: URKNOWN,

Indiana Department of.
Ocegatonal Safety aad el

faspection Datels): 05711/2623» 06122023

Tasuanee Date: 312073

-,

"Sﬁ?few*O’rﬂer—',anﬂf'.N‘o"tiﬁcﬂﬁbnz-nf Penalty,

Company Nan

sty Order: LIein.2

“Type of Violition: Serions:

29 CFR: 1910.28(5)(1)(0)::(1) Bach emiployee. on alkiip/wiofiing suface Wit an Gilpioteated $ids o cige sihich

\was 4 feet:or mare above alower level was ngt protected From falling by the use;of guardrail systems, safetynet.
systems, opapersonal fall aest sysiems =

- Asfeba’ Ml LP, 15700 HWY 41 N Evinssilis, Indiana, Packirig Depertiiet Line No. 5 Filler Vo, 4

about: May, 16,2023, an enlployw@) engaged inmaintenance activities at:4 height of Approxinvately 7 f&
(washwere)nab profected ffom: falls by-anyt means.

ABATEMENTDOCUNEEHTATIONREQUIREDFGR’IHIS ITEM

Date By Which Vislation Must be Abated: Aiigpist 08, 2023
Proposed Penalty: $4.000.00

‘Safely Ofder:andd Notification of Petialty pigeof. 13 O8HA2 (Rev 1723):



Indiana Department of Labor Trispestion Nambier: 1669457
Dectipatichal Safety-and Healty Amiistraion. CSHOIR o
" i Optional Repart.No.:

Tuspection Date(s)

Baféty Orderand Notification of Penslty

Company Name: Azteea Milling LP

Yrispeetion Sites 15700 Highway 41 Morth, Evansville, IN47725

“Type-of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910 J4TEIONER: Wi lpokput is used Jor ensigy contio, the periodlc inspyction shall inciude &
Teview, between. the ingpectorand ead , authorized:employee,-of {hat employes's esponsibilities uindérthe energy
wontiol procedire being inspected:

1

AsscA Mg TR, 15700 HWY 41 X, Bratisville, fotatia; Packing Depattrment Line Mo: 5 FillerNo. 4, On of

aboufiMay 10,2023, the employer didnot perform; ,pc':ri@ﬂii:‘;aﬂudifs'ﬁﬁfhfﬁﬁtﬁbﬁzﬁd‘gﬂmﬂﬁﬂ&

ABATEMENTDOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR'THIS ITEM

Pate:By Which Violation Miist be Abated: August 08, 2023
‘Proposed Penalty: $2,000,00

Sfety Order wrid NotiFeativriof Pentlty Page 9tof 13- ORHAD (Rev 1723)



fndiana Department of Labor mspemn;unmbe: 1669457

Otcupational Safety-and Health Administrafion: €s . RetOy
Onptidiial ReporfN“' 2 I;B*ZI@IOWN

Tnkpsction Date(s): 05/1142023 - 06/12/20231
‘Issnance Datey 0612212023

o

N(it’iﬁc:ahon of Penal:"" f

Compaiy: Neimies Azteca Milling LP
InsPei:ﬁon Sites 15700 EﬁghWay 41 Nart&, Evansvﬂle, IN47725:

29 €)  1476d): The-establisti ‘d:=prbcedﬁ:e*f e application of energy conto 5
i )idid iot:coet the dctigns Tisfed foand was tiot dong 1A sEquence s required by

iU LT0Y &1 N, Bansville, Indiana 47725 - Oh or about May, 10 3023, Packaping Deparfment - Axi
Was: gt aza;d wh n‘xake fepalis fo-anagger o iner#s Filler #44 aakmg
" ERt. Thc ntrol Applit o petforin the tepait werdnat impl ninted tie ]
Teqmreman’&r As avesulf,the fmﬂﬂwmg apphcablr. energyrc@ntml elerments were not-followed ta ine
Prapa:efor shuttlown [(d)(l )] - ensure autherized: emp loyeeihias knowledge- af thetype-and mag;utude of the
: ; f thie-energy to'beconfrolled,, eriethod ormeans toventeol the energy;

Shatdawn, the imaching b Eiitpry hing en-eqm;:ment shialt be tufned off orshut down: figing: the

enth

proceiliures established for ‘the machine.ar equipm
Machine-isolafion [fd)(3)1'# physmally Aocdte and eperate all energy-isclating devices that areneeded {o control the-

Goetey to the niachite or equiprient in: suich & manner 880, jsolate the: miachine-orequipmert Brom the.energy’

. LQTD devige application: ()3 - affixa; lockoat of tagautd&vma to-eagh ensipy isalating device:
aysyay] ~all patenhally hazardous or stored residual enerizy shall befglieved, distnriected,

tagsed oit, e ithorize pitiployes shall verify hat isolatics and dee

-accomplisbed:

Date By ‘Which Vielation Miist be Abated: August08, 2023

Propesed Penalfy: $7,000,00
Pape 10'6E 13 OSHA-2(Bav 123}
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Tnidian Depsitmient of Labior Inspection Number: 1669457
Oceupational Sefety and Health Adminisiraiion €SHO.ID: R6100
' T Optioiial Report No.:: UNKNOWHR
Tuspection Date(s): 1172023 -06/12/2023
Issuance Date: 96122!‘2023

Safety Orderand Notifieation of Penalty

Company Nimeé: Azteca Milling UF .
Inspection Site: 15700 Hig‘hWay 41 North, Emsvﬂle, 47725

SafetyOrder L ligm 5. Typé.of Vielation: Serious

Disconhedt was nat cagablq Qfas;t:epunga Tocks: Ji’ﬁsconnecnng ieans egnired by'this
sablerof Bisinglockad it this Gpen position:

AzhecaMﬂlmg LE, 15700'HWY-41 N, Evansville, Indiana, Packing. Deparhnenthe ‘No. 5 Filler No. 4, On.or’
Aboit May 10,5073, the.employer 4l owed for thg vse-of & disconnect vanble fo-aceepta Tock in the open gosition,

Date' By 'Which Viclation Must be Abated: ' , Avgust.08, 2023
‘Proposed Penalty; - $2,000.00

FTON REQUIRED ¥OR THIS LTEM

_IDSHADxrectar
G
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Indiana:/Department of Labor
Occupational Satety and Health Administration:

INVOICE/DEBT COLLECTION NOTICE

Campany Nariies Azteca Milling TP
Inspiection Site: 15700 Highway 41 Nojthi; Evansville, IN 47725
Tssuance Date: 62212023

Summaryof Penalties for Inspection Number: 1669457
Safety. Order 1 Item 1a, Serious . §4;000.00
afety Order 1 Ttem 1b; Seriots 50,00
Safety Ovder 1Téin 2 i . $4,000,00:
Safety Order 1 Ttem:3; ;Sermus i $2,000.00:
Kafety Order: 1 Ttenr 4, Serious $7,000.00
Safety Order 1 Teirs; Seviony $2,000.00.
YOTALPROPOSED PENATIINS: .  sispun

Penlties ave due- within fifteen (15) working dags of receipt of fhis nofification. unless requested;
Make:your check or ‘money order payable to: “Indiana: DOL/IOSHA:” Please- indicate IOSHA’s
Tnspectiot ‘Nutuber {(indcated ahovc) ofi the rermttance You thidy alst wake 4 paymént ; ohling, at

hitps:#payingovicomidol/; Your acceuntnumber s your fospection number.

'TOSHA dogs ot agree to.any festrictiohs or conditions or endoisemients piat on,any check ot mofiey
ord less than full amount dug, und will cash the check: or :money: order as if'these restrictions,
oondxﬁans, oF-endotsements do not exist.

‘Corrective:action taken by youfor each. aﬂeged. violation should be submittéd tothis:office ot 6 abouit;
‘thie: abatcment dutes indicated an‘the Safety Order and Notificatlon of Penalty:

A-worlshest las begii provided to assist in providing the. réquired abatemrieht informiation. A sompléted
sapy-of this-worksheet should be posted at the worksite with safefy orders,

6/22/2023
Date
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